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This and “lhat . . .

® Twenty-two students were con- cialtics.”

firmed into the Lutheran faith at
Pucific Lutheran College  between
January 9 and May 15, 1949. I'ol-
lowing o series of lectures on the
fundamentals of the Christian faith
by the Rev, Kelmmer N Roe, Pre-
fessor in Religion, twenty-two stu-
dents have been confirmed and sev-
eral baptized in services held  at
Trinity Luthceran Church on Jan-
vary 9 and May 15, respectively.
Dr. S. C. Eastvold, President of the
College, delivered the sermons on
bath occasions. Dr. E. B. Stceen, Col-
lege Paster, conducted the liturgy,
mcluding Communion. The Rev. Mr,
Roe officiated at the baptisin and
confirmation rites. Rev. Roc states
that nearly twenty-five younyg people
are already cager to join the same
kind of instruction classes in the fall
of 1949.

@ More than £330 worth ol new
books have been added to the Pacific
Lutheran  College  Library  shelves
since November 3, 1948, The largest
of the book-s ts is u tweaty-four
volutne edition of the 1948 Encyclo-
pedia Brittainica (with World Atlas
costing $180.48.

@ A new bhakery has been installed
ir the Old Main bascinent dircetly
south of the foot of the center stair-
wav. A large new Lang steve was
inoved into the room, a job which
reguired the moving of all the win-

dow framies and the chipping away

of some cement stairs outside  the
windew in order to squecze the stove

throuzh. The stove is big cuough

to hulie sixteen pies at one  tine,

With the

satbis g siasasie . 2 48 _oieaes.

new cquipment, studonts boarding

in the dining hall have more

rolls, cream puffs, other “Leona spe-
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Other cquipment installed
in the new bakery includes a mixing
machine and kettle. Miss
Sicgle has been at P.L.C. for a vear
and a half.

@ Rev. Milton Nesvig left the Col-
lcge on February 1 to lend his serv-
ice to the United Christian Educa-
tion Appcal in the Evangelical Lu-
thcran Church for a $2,000.000
ingathering for the construction of
ncw buildings on the main campuses
of the institutions of higher learning
of the E.L.C. Mr. Milton Nesvig was
clected to head the College Alumni
Division, a job that nccessitated his
moving to Minneapolis for six
months. At the request of Rev, Mars
Dale, Chairman of the Appeal, Mr.
Nesvig  has been further released
until October 1.

steam

@ “Vocational oppostunities with-
in the Church”™ was the subject dis-
cussed in one of the series of Tawasi

sponsored forums. Mederated by Dr.

E. B. Steen, Pustor of Trinity Lu-|

theran Church in Parkland, the pan- |

¢l consisted of Mrs. Kelmer Roc;
Miss Lillian Franzen, a Tacoma zo-
cial worker: Rev. Olin G. Dasher,
pastor of Redeemer Lutheran
Church in Fircrest: and Profcsser
Magnus Nodtvedt. Speaking on Par-
ish work, Mrs. Roe stressed the need
for parish workers today because
“we are reaping the harvest of an
unchurched nation. However, do not
go into church work unless you have
a sincare Jove for it)” she cautioned,
“because the work never done.””
Mrs. Roe cmphasized that religions
work provides a channcl for “a great
deal of happiness and expression of
Christian  faith.” Mrs. Roe stated
that perseverance, tact, and patience
are also prercquisites for a parish
worker. Presenting the branches of
social work, Miss Franzen discussed
children’s homes, family welfare
agencics, and work for the aged. “We
are trying to help aged people in

is

Continued on Pige Two)

President S. C. Eastvold

Delivers Annual Report

*To the Northwestern District of
‘ the Amicrican Lutheran Church
¢/o Dr. S. C. Sicfkes
‘71 N. E. Russcll Street
Portlind 12, Oreeon

The Fifty-fifth Auniversary of Pa-
cific Lutheran College was celebrat-
cd on Sunday, May 29, with bac-
calsurcate services held in Memorial

A vraneanrn at 1T o’ rlarl and with
commencenient cxercises in the aft-
crnoon at 3:30 o'clock. It is the

concerted opinion of at least 2,000
peaple wno were present at o that
occasion that it was by all odds the
finest occasion ever experienced on
this campus in almost every respect.

Orn that occision we gave one hun-
dred and  twenty-four Bachclor of
Avts degrces and five honoravy de-
erces, including four Doctor of Di-
vinity and one Doctor of Laws.

In alinost cvery respect, this has

been the outstanding  year in  the

history of this College. The envoll-
ment has exceeded that of any pre-
vious year. It is evident that a tre-
mendous of in
Chiistian higher education pervades
the Church in the entire territory.

anmount nterest

May 1 present to yvou @ very bricf
bird's-cye-view regarding @ few mat-
ters which concern all fricnds of the
College,

' &
NCIAL EXPERIENCES

AND NEEDS
Currently
be

FIN/

We
alert in order to sceure an
lurge cnough to pay our faculty and
stalf salaries that will be reasonably

the
income

st constantly  on

coramensurable with the hich cost

of living as these faithful people
deserve all thar can ve done to light-
en the rather difficult {inancial

burden. The dollags we pay are still
(Continued on Page Two)

Board of

The annual spring mceting of the
Board of Trustees the  Pacific
Lutheran College  Association
held in the office of the College
President on April 19, 1949. The
meeting was called to order by the
President of the Board, Dr. H. L.
Foss. Rev. €0 H. Noivaard led in
prayer and asked God's
and blessing upon the deliberations
of the meeting. Members present at

of
was

«uidance

the meeting were: Dr. Ho L. Foss,
Scattle; Rev. C. H. Norgaard, Ev-
crett: Mr. M. E. Ford, Parklond:

|Rev. W. H. Hellman, Portland, Ore-

gon: Dr. Martin Norgore, Scattle:
Mre. N. N, Haceness, Tacoma: Mr.
F. E. Edlund, Olympia; Rev. O. AL
Schmnidt, Portland, M.
Olaf Halvorson, Huntington Park,
California: Rev. M. ]J. K. Fuhy, Sil-
verton, Oregon: Mr. E. A, Morken,
Cenesce, Idaho: Dr. Paul Vigness,

Oreron:

Alameda, California; Mr. Chris
Knutzen, Burlington: My, Arne
Straud, Puvallup: and D»r. 5. C.

Eastvold. Absent were Dr. G0 AL V.
Lund, Gresham, OGregon: and Rev,
I. Ovville Martin, Long Beach, Cal-
dornia, whe wrote for an cxcusce
because of illness in his family.

Dr. Foss introduced the new mem-
ber of the Board, Mr. E. A. Morken
from the Rocky Mountain District
representing the Spokane and Inter-
mountain Circuits,

[he Kuno Nukk family, including
wife and daughters, Ivi and Elvi,
were introduced to the Board by
Reve W, FL Hellnian and Dr . 1L
Foss. Do Toss, on behalf of the
Bourd, expicssed to this LEstonian
DP family a sincere welcome to thie
PLL.C. family and to the state of
Washington and to the ercat land
of America. Dr. Eastvold joined in
the Miss Ivi responded
heautifully in English, The two eirls,

grecting.

19 and 21, respectively, will enter
College as freshmen in the fall of
1949,

Dr. Philip Hauge, Decan of the
College, reported to the Board of
“I'rustces on the status of the cnroll-

Ground - breaking excrcises for
the ncew Auditorium - Dramatics,
Speech and Conservatory of AMusic
building were held on May 31 at 1
o' clock. Special music was furnished

" Three Department Heads Break

direction of Professor . J. Malmin. | speaker system
On account of rain it was not pos-|all who were present
: ' |
sible to have the College band under

the baton of Harlem G. Moen, dirce-
tor of band and oichestra, as had

by the Choir of the West under the |been previously  planned. A loud-

could hcar
what was said. Dr. S. O,
was Master of Ceremonies and took
carc of the hiturgy and delivered the

address on the occasion. Inasmuch

Eastvold |

Trustees Meet
Tuesday, April 19, 1949

ment and the problent of scholae-
ships. The Board expressed approval
of the whole program of scholar-
ships and encouraged the same (dur-
ing the past vear the College has
given free scholarvships to
students in the amount of about
$10,000, and work scholarships, or
grants-in-aid, to students who need-
ed work, the sum of about $25,000.
It appcars that the saturation point

worthy

of support of students has about
been reached. The College is happy
to be of service to students that

cannot otherwise take care of them-
sclves).

Among the many resolutions that
weie presented to the Board of Trus-
tees by the Executive Committee of
the Board, the following will have
general interest to the readers of the
Summer News Bulletin:

RESOLVED, that the Board ap-
prove for gradnation the seniors in
the four year College of Education
and the four year College of Liberal
Arts as proposed by the Faculty and
the  Administration  for the
1048-1949.

RESOLVED, that the Board ap-
prove the granting of the honorary
deerces, Doctor of Divinity, honoris
causa, to the four following candi-
dates: The Rev. S . Sictkes, the
Rev. Cail Lund-Quist, the Rev. Os-
car C. Hanson, the Rev. Alvin N
Rogness, and that the degree, Doc-
tor of Laws, honoris ciusa, be con-
ferred on the Rev. Philip E. Dybvig.
The: degrees are o he conferred a2
th(' (:U“(“l('“(,'('”“'nl EX('I(‘)\‘('S ol
Sunday, May 29, at %30 o'clock.
(The granting of degrees to these
five candidates unanimously
presented to the Board by the Col-
lege Faculty).

RESOLVED, that the Board of
Trustees approve the propoescd cur-

year

Was

ient budget for the school year
1949 - 1950 (approximately  $300,-
000).

RESOLVED, that the Board of
T'rustees cxpress its thanks and ap-
‘Continued on Page Four

Ground for New Building

i
{
i

,_J

was set up so that [as the new building will have three

important departments; there were
thieee heads of departments who han-
dled the new spade in the ground-
bresking: Dr. J. P. Pflucger, Chair-

‘Continucd on Page Lour?
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President Eastvold’s Report

{Conitinucd from Page Oac)
below the pre-wer level in purchas-
g power.

We should tell our people that
the cost of attending Pacific Lu-
theran Colleze s no more than at
other good standard colleges, and, in
fact, no more than is charsed by the
universities. Even though the tuition
is less there, the fact is that the
cost over all is no more, when cvery-
thing is considered, at Pacific Lu-
theran College.

Capital Investment

On July 31, 1943, the official
auditor declared that we had a net
value of $281,093.79. Oun July 31,
1948, the same audtor showced that
we had in gross asscts the sumu of
$1,868,843.46. The net value at this
date is approximately $1,750,000.00.
We are grateful for this marvelous
increase in our copital investment,
but we must not ceage praying and
working in order to incrcase our
plant value for the purpose of giv-
ing to our faculty and students ever
better equipment for the great job
of cducation.

A good college at any time is an
investment in our own future and
the future of the Church. These
needs will have to be met by gen-
erous men and women who believe
in Pacific Lutheran College and in
the type of young Ainericans who
come frorm this institution. We make
no apology for asking our gencrous
men and women to sharce their
wealth with us. Where can somc
money be invested with greater re-
turns than in the furure of young
Americans?

A Church-wide Appeal

At this hour an intensive appeal
is in progress within the Evangelical
Lutheran Church for the gathering
of a plant expansion fund in the
minimum amount of $2,000,000 for
the twelve institutions of learning
of that Synod. Wc sincercly hope
that we will go far over the goal
because we need at least $3,000,000
if the money is divided according
to the present proposed arrange-
ment. The ininimuin needs of Pacific
Lutheran College are an Auditor-

1943-44
American Lutheran ... s 437
Augustana Synod ... 14
Evangclical Lutheran . 25
Other TAthcEans Seamas . 21

PLC Furnace's
Appetite Grows

A
consumed in the heating of the Pa-

record amount of oil was
cific Lutheran College plant to kecp
pace with new building structures
as well as the unusual freezing tem-
peratures that were here during the

winter, Whereas about 3,000 gallons

of ail per week did the chore last |

winter, this year the figure has
soared to 4,000 gallons at a cost
of $800 every seven days. Untl 1941
cordwood was the source of heat
supplying just the main building.
Sawdust replaced the old wood piles
in 1941. The next course was the
cumbersome  “hog fuel,”” made up
of mashed wood scraps from lumber
piles. This tasteless meal wos soon
given up in favor of the morc appe-
tizing chunks of coal, hut before
tong, the furnace grew tired of that
as well. A bad case of ulccrs, or
something, put him on a liquid diet
in 1947, and so it remains today.
Who knows what's next? When the
students were inclined to complain
about an occasional chilly classroom,
they were reminded of the long, hard
life our furnace has led, and also
were advised to give heed to the
cncouraging words of Tacoma
Chamber of Commerce, “Spring is
just around the corner.”

ium - Dramatics - Music building
well as a new dormitory for givls.

as

Lutheran Colleee with only enough
| to erect onc of these buildings at
the best. The proposed new huilding
will cost $300,000. About $337,000
will be forthcoming from the United
Christian Education Appeal if the
mmimum goal is reached. We are
hoping that somc private gifts, to-
| gether with the appeal that will be
carricd on in the Amcrican Lutheran
Church in 1950, will produce the
other $130,000 to make a total of
$300,000 for this impressive and
much-needed building.
1T
THE FACULTY

The faculty and staff at Pacific
Luthersn College are in progess of
numerical and academtic growth. If
we judge by the standard of aca-
demic degrees, there is scarcely aay
Lutheran college faculty in Armerica
that has achieved a higher standard
than that which belonegs to the fac-
ulty at our institution. We are very
happy to know that Dr. E. €. Knoir
will join the faculty on September
1, 1949, as Chairman of the Depart-
ment of Sociology. We are glad to
report that other excellent people
are being added to the staff to make
our institution stand out in the {ront
lines with one of the finest facultics
of all the twenty-six Lutheran col-
leges in America. Let us pray that
God will continue to endow our fac-
ulty with the qualities of love, loy-
alty, perseverance, faithfulness, and
joy in thcir God-given assignmunts,

IIL
THE STUDENT BODY

The total earollment for the fall
semester of 1948 reached 909 stu-
dents. That is about 100 1nore than
last The total unduplicatrd
enrollment of the College for the
vear will be 1130, Since Pacific Lu-
theran College is a cooperative c¢n-
terprise in which three Synods have
joincd together it is interesting to
noticc the cnrollmeuts that come
from the three Cooperating Synods
together with other Lutherans as
shown in the following tabulation:

vear.

44645 4546 46-47 47-48 48-19
28 48 80 102 98
18 23 46 62 75
110 i63 275 340 392
25 2k} 90 119 124

| We have an unusually fine student

body. The ¢ases of discipline have
been few, and we have had a good
campus morale. Our chief aim is to
foster their spiritual development in
the pattern of the Lutheran Church.

The number of student veterans
has dropped from last year as would
be expected. We have been able to
take care of the housing problem up
to this point though with some dif-
ficulty. We arc in great need of more
dormitory space.

' The spiritual program is carried
on this ycar with as much emphasis
| as we have had in any other year.
| Our Spiritual Emphasis Week was
I this vear carried on under the aug-
| pices and leadership of Rev. Carl B.
i Anderson, Ausustana Synod, Berke-
i ley, California. A great deal of good
came out of that series of meetings.
TV.
ACCREDITATION

On December 9, 1948, the Coilege
was granted final and indefinite ac-
creditation by the Northwest Asso-
ciation of Sccondary and Higher
Schools as a four-year liberal arts
college with a teacher-training de-
partment. We are also a member of
the American Council on Education
as well as of the Association of
American Colleges. Commendation
by the Association at its inspection
in the fall of 1948 was such that it
was a thrill to all of us who heard
the report both privately and pub-
liclv.

| Pacific Lutheran College has ar-

The present United Christian Ed- |
ucation Appeal will provide Pacific |

rived as a first-class liberal arts col-
leae.
V.
| INTER-SYNODICAL COOP-
ERATION

Pacific Lutheran College rejoices
in the cooperative intercst of three
agrcat Lutheran Church bodics.
There are many who sincerely he-
lieve: that the future of the Church
in the west is in large measure tied
up with the kind of cooperation that
we give to one another at Pacific
Lutheran Collewe.

The appropriations given annually
to the College by the threc cooper-
ating bodies have been much appre-
ciated and acknowledgment has heen
made year by vear by the Board of
Trusteces for the institution. We
thank the members of the Augustana
Synod, the American Lutheran
Church, and the Evangelical Luther-
an Church for this united support.

The cost of operating the College
| has increased during the past five
years by about five times, from
$100,000 to approximately $500,000.
Tt is clear that the appropriations
from the Cooperating Synods have
not kept pace with the increasing
costs of opcrating the College. While
we are grateful to the thousands of
people who have given support to
the building fund of the College, as
well as to the Roll Call Offerings
year by year, we still feel that we
must press the needs of this insti-
tution which is so important among
us in the west. We wc faced with
tremendous problews, and the pres-
surcs arc great.

While many s-hools had a lower-
ing in attendance, our institution has
found itsclf faced with the blessed
responsibility of more young pcople.
We are concerned not least of all
that our Lutheran Pastors through-
out the west will urge upon their
young people to apply at our own
school early enough so that they may
be admitted. Especially arc we con-
cerncd that we get the hetter stu-
dents from the high schools through-
out the couutry.

VI.
THE YEARS AHEAD

The Board of Trustees joins me
in thanking the Anierican Lutheran
Church through the Northwestern
District for having contributed the
full amount voted in the: budget dur-
ing the past ycar.

Anyone connected swith a privately
controlled college realizes that ques-
tions concerning tomorrow are press-
ing hard upon us. We are faced with

present pressure for admission will
continuc. When these pressurcs
abate, will the leveling off go far
below or relatively close to where
we are now ? How can we build fac-
ulties to care for the present needs
and not find ourselves embarrassed
if thosc needs lessen? Are the statis-
ticians richt when they tell us that
when the G.I. bill ccases to send
pecoplc to college, we shall have an
cven greater demand from non-vet-
erans than we have today from both
veterans and non-veterans? Some
people tell us that by 1960 the coun-
try may well need iwice the facilities
for highecr education than those
available today. If these prophecies
be true, should Pacific Lutheran
College begin to expand its size
proportionately with the increasing
demands for higher cducation?

We are standing entirely alone in
the west two-fifths of the nation.
May thc good Lord give us wisdom,
understanding, courage, and faith to
tnove forward into the unknown fu-
ture with trust in God.

VIIL
CONCLUSION

May I modestly and humbly sug-
gest that the Northwestern District
of the American Lutheran Church
at its Convention adopt among other
resolutions the following:

(1) RESOLVED, that the North-
western District actively support the
Roll Call Offering ingathering which
is held each year in the fall by the
membership of the three cooperat-

the «question as to how long the |

Enrollment for
Summer Soars

| Ths summer session enrollment
reached a new high this vear, indi-
cating increased interest on the part
of experienced teachers and students
in accelerating their programs.
Courses are offered in the field of
clementary cducation  for students
who «wish to wark for their princi-
pal's ceedentials, for those wishing
to rencw thel teachers’ certificates
and for those who primarily
concerned in mecting requirements

ar

for certification.

The reeular faculty of the College
is supplemented by specal teachers
in the ficld of cducation and indus-
trial arts. Miss Ruth Michaclson
joined the staff in the field of pri-
mary cducation, Mr. Morris Ford ia
school administration and Mr. Rob-
ert I. Johnson in industrial arts.

The first frve-week term of
sumier  session  opened  Tuesday,
second  five-week
18 and

Classes {or the
terra besin Monday, July

end on Friday, August 19.

St. Olaf Co"_ege
Choir Visits PLC

The St. Olaf College Choir sang
onc of its superb concerts at P.L.C.
on February 35, 1949. The Choir
came to the College in its 30th vear.
During that time it has reccived
acknowledgement by leading niusic
critics to be one of America's fore-
most a cappella choirs. It has re-
| peatedly sung to packed houses in

Boston and New York to Seattle and
Los Angeles. The choir gave 33 con-
certs in Europe in 1913, and 40 in
| 1930, singing in many of the famous
| cathedrals. It was a delight to have
this choir on the campus.

(- —

ing Church bodies.

(2) RESOILVED, that the Pastors
and congregations throughout the
Northwestern District be wurged to
solicite students for the College.

(3) RESOLVED, that the North-
western District give its complete,
all-out support to the ingathering for
Christian Education in the year 1950
with the understanding that eighty
| pereent of the gross income be con-
| tributed toward the building opecra-
tions at Pacific Lutheran Coliege.

(4) RESOLVED, that the North-
western District express its appre-
ciation to the American Lutheran
Church as « Synod for the liberal
annua! contribution made to the
current operations of the College,
and that the Synod be petitioned to
further increasc the contributions to
the current funds of the College if
possible,

t

May I close this annual report as
I have done in other years with a
special greeting of thanks and ap-
preciation for the fine cooperation
which has been shown to me in per-
son and to the school in general by
the cotire American Lutheran
Church with special emphasis to the
Northwestern District at its Conven-
tion held st Parkland, Washington,
June 6 to 10, 1949.
Cordially yours in Christ,
S. C. EASTVOLD,
President.
* Similar reports have been sent
to the E.L.C. and to the Augustana
Synaod.

| tration on Monday,
| September 12, thru
| Thursday, Septem-
ber 15.
Formal opening on
‘ Thursday, Septem-
| ber 15, 7:30 p.m.

the |

| June 14 and closes Friday, July 15|

all the major American cities from |

Fall Semester Regis-|

Tbis and That

(Continued fron: Page One!
theltr ewn homes and make them feel
that they arc not just a burden,’
she said. Professor Nodtvedt asserted
that a minister must have “a love
of people and an understanding of
their necds and an inmer call to the
task.” Rev. Dasher stated that a pas-
tor should be aware af the needs of
his congregation. “Hr must also have
a knowledee of music and know how
to present geverently the hymins,
prayers, and liturgy of the Church.”

® The P.L.C. Alumni held one of
its$ annual reunions on the campus
on the week end of February 18-20.
The activities were highligchted by a
‘ banquet, a Shakespeare play, two
basketball canics, and a Choir of the
West concert,

® Paul Arlton, a sophomore of
| Parkland, replaced Robert Ericson
as oditor of the Mooring Mast at
the beginning of the second semes-
ter. He has heen elected to serve
a5 cditor at the opening of the school
var in 1949,

® Dr. S. €. Eastvold, President of
the College, has been on constant
tours during the entirc school year.
He has spoken in states ranging from
the Pacific Northwest to New York,
and from Canada on the north to
California on the south. One of his
chief activitics has been that of
Chairman of the Special Gifts Com-
mittee of the United Christian Edu-
cation Appeal.

® The Lute Ski Chiefs, together
with the young people who love ski-
ing, have taken outings during the
sthool year to such places as Mount
Hnod and Mount Rainier,

® The Religinus activities at the
Collegr have been numérous during
the vear. The Mission Society, the
| LSA, the groups going to the Old
People’s Home and to the city and
county jails, to McNeil Island, the
federal penitentiary, the Thursday
L.noo:iprayer—mcetings, -the special
mertings for prayer in the Presi-
dent’s office together with the stu-
dents, the regular evening devotions
i the girls’ dormitery and the boys’
dormitory and round about in the
homes where the boys live by twos,
fours, and sixes; and above all else,
the daily Chapel services at 9:40
every school day, have all been spir-
itual experiences. No one can fully
estimatc the spiritual impact tha:
has gone into 1130 students that
have been on the campus during the
twelve month period between June,
1948, and June, 1949.

@ Nincteen charter members were
sclected for the Writers' Club which
was formed on the eampus early in
1949. These students were selected
on the basis of manusecripts submit-
ted to Dr. Herbert Ranson and Mr.
Everett Larson ol the English De-
partumient. These students wiil form
the nucleus of the new club.

® Tifty cadet teachers from the
| P.L.C. Departncnt of Education
gained their {irst actual teaching cx-
perience during the spring semester
|in the elementary and junior high
|schools of Tacoma and Picrece
county,

@ Pacific Lutheran College’s fac-
ulty members continue to be in de-
mand as spcakers at {ocal and nearby
serviee clubs, churches, and other
organizations. It is reported that Dr.
| William L. Strunk has declivered 73
addresses on various occasions
throughout the entire area since he
came to the College on October |,
1948.

® To cnable the students of PLC's
journalism class to study the make-
up and typography of leading U, S.
newspapers, the College library has
ordered rine daily out-of-town news-
papers.

® Four conventions have been
scheduled for the P.L.C. campus
during thc summer vacation. Junc b
to 10 werc the dates used for the
conclave of the Northwest District
of the American Lutheran Church.

(Continued on Pagc Three)
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New Faculty Members
School Year 1949-50

MR. ROBERT I. JOHNSON

Mr. Robert I. Johnson will join
the faculty on Scptember | in a
new department where he wiil teach
Industrial Arts and Mechanical;
Drawing. He aives his permancent
address as Los Angeles, California,
and his nationality, Swedish-Amer-
ican. He is a wmember of the Lu-
theran Church. He received his edu-
eptionn at Dassel, Minnesota, and
Winona, Minnesota, and at the Uni-
versity of Minnesota where he was
awarded the Master of Arts degree.
His teaching experience includes
Elgin, Minnesota, St. Paul, Minne-
sota, U. S. Navy, and Seward, Alas-
ka. One of his recommendations
states, “‘Speaking scholastically, I
do not belicve that it has been my
pleasure to work with anyone who
has made more progress than Mr.
Johnson. No one stands hicher in
the deparunent,” from Winona
State Teachers College, Winona,
Minnesota. Another teacher writes,
“*Mr. Johnson is one of our best
voung men. He has a fine person-
slity and a considerable degree of
leadership. His scholarship is strong.
His moral, personal, social, and pro-
fessional qualities are all in his
favor. He should do well as & teach-
er.”

MISS RUTH J. MICHAELSON

Miss Ruth J. Michaelson, on leave |
from Jowa State Teachers College,
Cedar Fulls, TIowa, has accepted a
position as Assistant Professor in our
Department of Elementary Teacher
Training. At that institution she su-
pervised the Student Teaching for
prospective elementary teachers. She
has been with the University since
1927. In addition to being a fine
teacher with a very recal professional |
intcrest in primary education, Miss
Michaclson is a fine Christian wom- l
an who has becn active in promoting :
the work of the Lutheran Student
Association. M iss Michaelson re-
ceived her B. A. dcgree from the
Towa State Teachers College, Cedar |
Falls, Towa, and the Master of Arts
degrce from Columbia Univcrsity,‘
New York City. She has also attend- !
cd other institutions such as
University of Chicago.

MRS. H. E. ELLINGSON

Mrs. H. E. Ellingson has received
her Library of Science degrec from
the University of Washington. She
has her B. A. degree from Luthcr
College, Decorah, Towa. She will
join our library staff on September
1, 1949. She reccived her high school
diploma from the Silverton High
School, Silverton, Orcgon, where her
father, the Rev. George Hendrick-
son, was pastor of Trinity Lutheran
Church during the vears 1917 to

the

Freshman Days |
Begin Sept® 12

Formal opening for the 1949-30
school year at Pacific Luth¢ran Col-
lege will be held Thursday, Septem-
ber 15 at 7:30 p.m. September 12
through 15 are “Freshman Days,”
when all new freshmen will be on
hand for the orientation progrim,
which includes a serics of intelli-
gence and aptitude tests, physical
examination and registration under
the supervision of certain faculty
membcers who have been designated
as freshman advisors.

Seniors, juniors and sophomores
will register on Monday, Tuesday
and Wecdnesday, respectively, with
freshman registration te be complet-
ed on Thursday.

Students who anticipate enrolling
for the fall term are urged to make
their applications without delay in
order that they may be assured of
housing.

{ comes to the library.

! ington and Seattle Pacific College,

1926. She attended Pacific Lutheran
College 1926 to 1928. She was grad-
uated from the Junior College de-
partment in 1928. She has a son,
Eric, 14, who will join the Collese
family with Mrs. Ellingson when she

DR. E. C. KNORR

Dr. E. C. Knorr will join the
faculty at Pacific Lutheran College
as Chairman of the Department of
Sociology on September 1, 1949.
Dr. Knorr received his college and
theological training in the American
Lutheran Church. While pastor of

Fbis and That

Continued from Page Two)

The meeting emphasized the ALC
1948 motto, “God’s Word: For Me,
For Mine, For All" Key addresses
werce given by Rev. Ravmond
Vogely, director of parish education
of the ALC; Rev. George Grewenow,
LaGrande, Oregon; and Rev. G. L.
Krocnk, Puyallup. Also present at
the convention was the venerable
Dr. Emmanuel Poppen, President of
the American Lutheran Church,
Columbus, Ohio.

Music teachers from throughout
the state gathered at PLC June 23
to 26 for the annual convention ef
the State Music Association. The
president of the organization is Ber-
nard Regicr, choir director at West-

ern Washington College. Included |

the Quecn Anne Lutheran Church |in the Sunday morning session was

in Seattle, he earned the Doctor of |
Philosophy degrec at the University
of Washington. During the past scv- |
cral years, he has done part time |
tecaching at the University of Wash- |

respectively. At the present time he
is completing the crection of a fine
home on the College campus. He is
the second vice president of the
Northwestern District of the Amer-
ican Lutheran Church.

REV. T. O. SVARE
Rev. T. O. Svare, who has re-
ceived his college and theological
training in the Evangelical Lutheran
Church, will join the faculty on
Septemiber 1 as professor of lan-
guages. He earned the Master of

a demonstration of junior choir work
by Professor G. J. Malmin and his
junior choir from Messiah Lutheran
Church.

Sunday School tcachers from two
different Synods will convenc. The
institute of the Evangelical Lutheran
Church is billed for July 31 to Au-
gust 5. A Workshop for Augustana
Synod tutors will take place August
1 to August 5.

® Wedding bells ealed miany
times during the late spring und
carly suinmer for PLC twosomes.
Again this summer we have had
many members of the student body
waking the trip dowa the aisle, All
of us at Pacific Lutheran College
join in praying God that the best
possible blessings will he showered

Arts degree at the University of
Washington with a major in lan-
guages. He will receive the Doctor
of Philosophy degree in December,
1949, The completion of the work
and the conferring of the dearee
have been delayed because his ad-
visor is touring Europe during the
summer time. Tt is reported that
Mr. Svarc is earning the degree,
Doctor of Philosophy in the ficld
of history, doing research in Greek,
Latin, German, French, and Eng-
lish. Mr. Svare’s main work will be
the tcaching of Norwegian and Ger-
man, and perhaps French, being
qualified in all of these languages.
His son, Richard Svare, will be a'
scnior in the College this fall. Mr. |
Svare was formerly pastor of Trin-
ity Lutheran Church, Parkland, be-
fore he entered the service of the
National Lutheran Council in caring \
for, or in managing and serving, at'!
the home and center for Naval Of- |
ficers and Men, Bremerton, Wash-l
ington, during the last war. At the |
present time he is in residence at
the University of Washington. There |
he will complete his work for the |
Doctor of Philosophy degree in Au-
gust of this year. |

MISS ESTHER ORDAHL, R.N. ‘
Miss Esther Ordah! will become |

College Nurse on September 1, 1949,
Miss Ordahl has a fine nursing rec- |
ord from vverseas duty during World |
War II. She was College Nurse, on |
4 part time basis, during her junior
ycar at P.L.C. This past vear she
devoted her time to the completing‘

!

of her College work, and was award-
ed the B. A. degree at P.L.C. on
May 29. Her late father was a Lu-
theran Pastor in North Dakota. |

Additional new faculty members |
will be provided in the ficld of |
speecch; business administration, |
where we will add two men; French;
Spanish; music, where we expect to
add one to tcach piano only and one
to teach voicc only in addition to
the teachers we alrcady have on the
staff: and Secondary FEducation. An-
nouncements will be made as soon as
possible wh en new additions are
given contracts.

Write for a

College Catalog

)on

upon these young people who enter
into homemaking and into their ca-
reers.

® Eleanor Hellbaum, who gradu-
ated with the PLC Class of 1949
with a B.A. degree, has accepted
a position as secretary iu the Regis-
trar’s office for the year 1949-1950.

@ Miss Charlotte Swanson, who

placed among the top three in the
state of Washinuton in his essay,
“Youth in the Community: Our
Cliristian Responsibility.”

@ Thirty-five students united on
Maich 11 to form a new Rifle Club
on the campus. Chasen to head this
group of rifle enthusiasts was Bob
Robbins. Chicf instructor for the
riflists is Erling Bergerson, writer
of the weekly column, “Trigger-
nometry’ for the Tacoma Times.
The club is open for interested stu-
dents, and anyone wishing to join is
welcome to 20 along on the weckly
trips to Point Defiance. Those shoot-
ing are required to purchase thetr
own ammunition which coits 30¢ a
box. Dues for this semcster have
been 30c¢

® The P.L.C. baskctball team
closed the scason with the best per-
centage mark of any college in the
state of Washington.

@ Several faculty members have
been student recruiters in the vari-
ous high schools throughout Oregon
and Washington. The College Ad-
ministration, as well as the Board
of Trustees, is very desirous that the
finest type of young people be ad-
mitted to the College in the fall of
19:49.

® The site of the 1949 “B” dribble |

derby came to the P.L.C. gymna-
siutn, Originally the tourney was
billed for the C.P.S. fieldhouse, but
the cagers found the floor oozing
with oil. Players plaved hide and
seck with the spectators, first switch-
ing to the C.P.S. gym aud then to
RIDAC,

® Early in March the citizens of
castern Washington, northern Idaho
and Montana had the opportunity
of hearing the ‘“‘zolden voice” of the
P.L.C. Choir of thec West. During
the last week of March the citizenry
of southcastern Washington and
northwestern Ovegon were given the
opportunity of hearing the “silver
voices” of the P.L..C. Chorus.

® The Linne Society has been very

has heen one of the secretaries in!active during the school year,

the Registrar's office, was married
June 12 to Mr. Jess Bumgardner
at Trinity Lutheran Church, Park-
land, Washington, Mr. Jess Bum-
gardner has aceepted a scholarship
in Purdue University for the vear
1949-1950.

® During the basketball season, the
Pacific Lutheran College Gladiators
won 18 gamcs in 22 starts. While

they did not clinch the champion- |

ship, they won more games than did
the champions.

® Under the supervision of Dr.
Burton Ostenson, Professor of Biol-
ogy, P.L.C.)s ornithology class has

! gone on some bird tours throughout

the area.

® Mr. Svere Omdal, class of 1928,
has been appointed Secrctary of
Agriculture in the State of Wash-
ington by Governor Arthur Langlic.

® On an average of oncc a week
the pastors of nearby Lutheran
churches have spoken to the students
at the regular College Chapel period
held each morning at 9:40 a.m.

® Jens (Knute) Knudsen, P.L.C.
freshman from Burbank, California,

Recognition for
Speech Dept.

Pacific Luthcran College re-
ceived notification of its acceptance
into the Pi Kappa Delta fraternity
early in January, 1949. Mr. Theo-
dore O. H. Karl, Head of our Speech

® The College baseball team had |

a very good season. While it ap-
pcared at the beginning that they
would end as the champions, they
finally ended up second to C.P.S.,
who had ¢ight wins, while the P.L.C.
team had scven wins.

® It looks good for the P.L.C.
athletes in all fields of athletics for
the fail of 1949,

® The College’s new Baldwin elec-

| tric organ was dedicated on Sunday

afternoon, April 10, when a recital
was played with nine pupils of Mrs.
Gunnar J. Malmin. A silver plaque
on the organ was placed in memory
of the Rt. Rev. C. J. Easivold, D.D.,
father of the President of P.L.C. The

| inoney was given by the Volin, South

Dakota, parish wherc the Rev. Dr.
C. J. Eastvold served in his final
ministry.

® Dr. Franklin Fry, President of
the United Lutheran Church, New
York City, spoke at Chapel on Mon-
day niorning, May 9. The distin-
guished 49 year old clergyman, who
has been head of the United Lu-
theran Church since 1944, thrilled
the students with his dynamic pre-
sentation and his thought provoking
challenge.

® Queen Catherine Brecum, senior
from East Stanwood, reigned over
May Day this year.

® The last in a series of Tawasi
sponsored vocational forums was
held on Thursday, May 12, at 8
p.m. m the Student Union. The
subject was “Business Adrinistra-

Department, said, “The College has! tion.” Three business men from Ta-
been striving toward qualification | coma were secured to appear on the
for this national forensic society for | pancl. Moderator on the occasion

the past eight vears. Membership in
this fraternity, which is the world’s
largest, opens up new possibilities for
the forensc squad in the ¢ntire speech
department. This has been the best
year in the department of speech
in the history of the College. Sweep-
stakes have bcen won in the north-
west, and the squad took scventh in
the nation at Peoria, Il in the na-
tioral mect among 149 colleges.”

was a member of the Economics and
Business Administration staff.

® The Baccalaurcate address for
the class of 1949 was held on May
29 at !l am. in the gymnasium.
Rev. Carl E. Lund-Quist, assistant
Executive Director of the National
Lutheran Council, with offices in
New York City, delivered the Bac-
calaureate address on, “The Church
Needs You.” Commencement exer-

'Sperati Library
Gift to College

Word has indi-
rectly that the entire private library
of the late Dr. Carlo A. Sperati,
Dircctor of Music at Luther College,
has been given to P.L.C. The an-
nouncement was made in The Lu-
theran Herald. Dr. Sperati's last will
and testament was presented to the
Probate Court in Decorah, Iowa.
The deceased had named as execu-
tor his son, Col. Paulo Sperati, who
was stationed in Hawaii. This was
his first opportunity to have the
estate probated. The noted musician
always had a warm spot in his heart
for Pacific Lutheran because he was
.on the original faculty of the Col-
lege when it started in 1894, He
organized the band and presented
| concerts regularcly, including some
appearances from the top of Old
Main for the benefit of Parkland
i townsfolk gathering below.

becen received

cises were held in the afternoon at
3:30 p.m. with Rev. Alvin N. Rog-
ness, popular pastor of Mason Cit;/,
Towa, speaking on the theme, “For
a Free World.” The awarding of five
honorary dearees highlighted the oc-
casion. With 2,500 people present
in the gymnasiuin, and with 124
graduates receiving B. A. degrees,
and 5 men receiving honorary de-
grees, Doctor of Divinity and Doctor
of Laws, respectively, it was the
finest occasion of its kind in the
fifty-five vear history of the school.
® Work has been started on what
is called *“the new faculty row.”"
Construction work is moving toward
complction on a two-story home for
Dr. E. C. Knorr, who will become
Chairman of P.L.C.s Sociologv Dc-
partment next fall. For several vears
he has been Pastor of Queen Anne
Lutheran Church and a part time
teacher at Scattle Pacific College
as well as at the University of Wash-
ington. Pacific Luthcran College
owns a number of lots which are
being kept for the use of faculty
members and their families.

College to Train
Grade and High

School Teachers

The Washington State Board of
Education, in session June 24 and
23, approved a “‘general certificate™
whereby prospective teachers may
lbe certified to teach on both the
[clementary and sccondary levels

| after 1951.

| In support of the new general
certificate the following comments
were made: “It is belicved that the
needs of vouth will be served best
by providing teachers who are
cquippend to tcach at either level,
Continuous improvement of the ed-
ucational program as a whole from
the kindergarten through the twelfth
grade should result when there is
an incrcasing number of teachers in
the ficld whose teacher education
program has prepared them to work
with both elementary and secondary
school students.”

Students now in training who are
interested in completing their work
in the elementary or secondary field
only will be eligible for certification
on one or the other level.

According to the action taken by
the Board, public and private col-
leges will be permitted to give train-
ing on both levcis. In accordance
with this action Pacific Lutheran
College will plau its eurriculum for
the general certificate and in the
interim will provide courst:s neces-
sary for elementary or secondary
| certification.
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(Continucd from Pauze Onc)
preciation to the three cooperating
Svnods for the appropriations

given to the Building Fund of the
Clollege

RESOLVED, that the Board re-
spectfully request the District and
Conference Presidents of the cooper-
ating Synods in the P.L.C. arca to
use their good offices to urge the
Pastors through the respective par-
ishes to wive the fullest possible sup-
port to the Roll Call Offerings in
1949,

RESOLVLED, that the Board au-
thorize the Exccutive Committee to
arrange for the annual audit of the
financial records of the College for
the school year 1948-1919.

RESOLVED, that the Board cox-
press its deep gratitnde to” God, and
its appreciation to the Business Ad-
ministration of the College, for the
splendid work done in the matter
of debt reduction during hte pres-
ent vear.

RESOLVED, that the Ida C.
Davis Fund be invested in Govern-
ment honds (approximatcly $37,000,
the interest to be used in the sup-
port of worthy students,
being the decision of Mrs. Ida Davis
as stated in her will).

RESOLVED, that thc Board ex-
press its appreciation to Mr. and
Mrs. Anton Anderson for

for |
the Current Fund, as well as moncy |

of $50 to be used toward the sup-
port of woithy students at the Col-
(quitc a number of students
receive  scholarships  from  various
organizations in thc Church and
from serviee clubs throughout the
country).

RESOLVED, that the Board com-
moend the Plant Manager for estab-
lishing the bake shop and laundry
services for the use of the students.

RESOLVED, that the new girls
dormitory be built when at least
150,000 of cash is on hand, and
when a suitable loan to complete
the structure has been guaranteed
and approved by the Board.

WHEREAS, it is commonly bc-
licved that the greatest building ex-
pansion nced on the College campus
today is a new Chapcel-Conservatory
of Music building, and

WHEREAS, the Evangclical Lu-
theran Church at this present
time cngaged in a Church-wide Ap-
peal for $2,000,000 for building
cxpansion purposcs on the campuscs
of its educational institutions which
should nct Pacific Lutheran College
approximately the sum of $337,000,
and

WHEREAS, the American Lu-
theran Chirch has decided to launch
a financial appcal in 1950 for the
educational institutions of its Synod,
and has resolved to give to Pacific
Lutheran College four-fifths (80%)

lege

18

the same | of all the income from that Appeal

in the Northwestern District of the
Synod, and

WHEREAS, a very oood friend
of the College has made a pledge of

the Schol- | $150,000 toward the crection of said

arship Fund which they have cstab- Chapel-Consvrvatory of Music build-

lished, and especially for the $500
which has already been paid into
the fund (Mr. and Mrs. Anton An-
derson intend to add to this fund
and have some good designs in mind
for the of students at our
Collese).

RESOLVED, that the Board ex-
press its appreciation to the Adimin-
istration, Faculty, education  staff,
maintenance staff, and kitchen help
for the splendid snpport &iven to the
United Christian Education Appeal
in the amount of $10,024.

RESOLVED, that the Board again
express the prayerful hope that all
of the E.L.C.. congrcuzations through-
out the Pacific District arca will
join wholcheartedly in the United
Christian Fducation Appeal which
is beinr carried out during this yeac
of 1949.

RESOLVED, that the Board au-
thorize President Eastvold to repre-
sent the College Association in con-
nection with the Educational Appeal
to be carrvied out hy the Mmnerican
Lutheran Church in the Nowrthwest-
ern District during the year 1950,

RESOLVED, that the College-
owned nincteen lots located on Air-
port Road be sold to Mr. Gordon
Korsmo for a total sum of $4,000
cash, the College to pay the cxpensce
of title insurance and transfer.

WHEREAS, the publicity litera-
turc which went out at the tinc
funcls were solicited for the ercction
of the Student Union Building pro-
vided that o bronzt: plate he pre-
pared and installed in the new
building with the names inscribed
of those who had given special gifts
or services in soliciting wifts,

IBECR R B @QRE, BE I1LRES
SOLVed, that President Eastvold be
authorized and directed to have such
a plate prepared, and that such
names as should properly be in-
cluded be cast in said bronze plate.

RESOLVED, that the Board cx-
press its approval and joy regarding
the landscaping now going on
throughout the campus.

RESOLVED, that lctters of ap-
preciation he sent to the cooperating
church bodics for scholarships that
have been eranted to worthy stu-
dents at the College, and that the
same kind of letter be sent to the
Luther Leagues of the Evangelical
Luthcran Church in the Pacific Dis-
trict for an annual scholarship grant

future

ing, and

WHEREAS, the gencral contrac-
tors, Steiro and Hanson, 920 North
L. St, Tacoma, Washington, have
proposed to furnish equipment and
to supervise the construction of said
Chapcl-Conscrvatory of Music huild-
ing on the campus of Pacific Lu-
theran Coliege for a fixed fee,

THEREFORE, BE I'T
SOLVED

THAT, the Execcutive Committee
of the Board be cmpowered to act
as the Building Committee for said
Chapel-Conscivatory of Music build-
ing, and

THAT, said Committee be
full power to start the construction
of this building as soon as plans
specifications have been  pre-
pared by the College architects un-
der the direction of the Business
Manager of the College. The Board
interprets  this resolution to mean
that the building will be started, if
possible, before August |, 1949, and
that building proccedings are to con-
tinuc toward a completed structure
which is to cost in th¢ neighborhood
of $500,000 with the provision that
building operations are to continue:
only so far as the cash on hand or
in sight gives assurance of a debt-
free building.

RESOLVED, that a full time Col-
lewe Chaplain shall be called to take
in said office soon as the
new College Chapel is ready for use.

BE. I'T" FURTHER RESOLVED,
that the Colleee President, in con-
junction with the Executive Com-
mittee of the Board, shall call such
a Chaplain and that the Committee
be given full power to act in regard
to salary and definition of the dutics
of said Chaplain.

RESOLVED, that as soon as the
ncw College Chapel is ready for use,
the following regulations shall be
cnforced, and that due publicity be
given to  the in the College
bulletins and the church press (com-
parc College catalog 1947-1948,
“Attendance,” p. 33): Regular
Chapel attendance is required four
of the five days cach week, excep-
tion to be made optional on Student
Body Day. Excuses for absences must
be filed with the College Chaplain
within onc week after the absence
has occurred. Uncxcused absences
(cuts) arc not permitted. More than
four unexcused absenees cach seres-

RE-

wiven

and

(BAACHES as

same

Music Festival

Pulls From Afar

Saturday, May 7, marked the
day for thc inauguration of the first
annual music festival and compcti-
tion for scholarships at P.L..C.. undcr
the direction of Professor Harlem
G. Mocen. Applications for entry
came from as far as Tillamook, Orc-
son, and Richland, Washington.
Students competed in three divisions,

piano, voice, and string and wind |

instruments. Three first prizes of
$400 cach were awarded the win-
ners in cach division. Sccond and
third prizes were $100 and $50, re-
spectively, in cach of the divisions.
Contestants were required to per-
form two sclections of their choice
from memory. A panel of adjudi-
cators decided the winners. Various
high school bands and choirs camc
to the program. P.L.C.'s band, choir,
and orchestra took their places, as
well as soloists who were snccessful
in the competitions. The program
was complimentary to the public. It
is expected that such events will be
held every vear during May.

ter may result inosuspension of the
student from all classes,

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED,

that the regularly clected College
Committce on Religious  Activitics
shall be the Chaplain’s  advisory

committce.

RESOLVED, that an appcal be
made through the College bulleting
and other Colleue related press serv-
ices for special ¢ifts toward the new
Chapel furnishings such  as
ture, art windows, and other cquip-
ment.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED,
that similar requests be nade for
special gifts toward the crection of
the new girls’ dormitory, following
the same pattern that was used in
the refurbishing of rooms in the OId
Main building (it is understood that
this resolution is not to he cffective
until after Jannary 1, 1950, the same
being decided in order not to inter-
fere with the United Christian Ed-
ucation Appeal being carried on in

| the Fvangelical Lutheran Church).

RESOLVED; that the Board ap-
prove the proposition that all the
old ivy now clinging to Old Main
be torn down while scaffolding for
the remodeling of the roof is up and
that ncw ivy he planted that will
do mwvay with the difficulty now
intcrferring  with  the maintenance
of the building (the old ivy has now
been cleancd trem the building, and
with the fine new roof on the Old
Main, the entire structure looks like
new).

RESOLVED, that the Board ap-
prove the establishments of depart-
ments in Industrial Arts, Home Eco-
nomics, and Nutsing, and that these
departments be sct up as soon as
suitable tcachers can be sccured (a
professor for Industrial Arts
Mechanical Drawing has been  se-
curcd. The Departments of Home
Fconomiics and Nursing will likcly
be deferred until the fall of 1950).

RESOLVED, that the Faculty
heads of departinents shall be called
“Chaitman” and that said chairmen
arc to be clected by the Administra-
tion and the department involved,
and that said Chairmnen shall
rulc be rotated not less than every
three years.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED,
that this resolution shall be cffective
when it has been approved by a
two-thirds vete ol the Faculty of
the College.

RESOLVED, that Dr. William
Strunk hc authorized to organize a
Hecalth Dcepartment, and that the
samc shall be done in consultation
with the Administration.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED,
that the title given to the Head of
this department shall be “Chairman
of the Health Department.”

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED,

as a

furni- |

and |

that the Chairman of the¢ Health
Departinent shall receive no extra
pay, iind that not less than fourteen
of classroont work shall he
required of said Chairman in addi-
tion to such timc and cnergy as is
put forth in the Health Department
(these conditions were expressly the
desire and  wish of Dr. William
Strunk).

RESOLVED, that the Board e¢x-
| press its special appreciation for the
cfficiecncy demonstrated by the book-
keepers, secretarics, and assistants in
the various offices of the College and
for the faithful adherence to duty.

RESOLVED, that Dr. Eastvold
be authorized to ecngage the neces-
savy additions to the Faculty and
Staff as per information given to the
Board at this meccting.

RESOLVED, that thc Board ap-
prove the ranking of the teachers as
| presented by the President of the
College in the case of both old and
new Faculty niembers.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED,
that the salary schedule in cach case
be approved  (modest were
given to all people on the faculty
and staff for the year 1949-1950
with the understanding that, if pos-
sible, a ten per cent bonus shall be
given duving the year if finances
permit).

RESOLVED, that the Board cx-
press its jov and approval upon the
report from the Administration re-
garding the present cnrollment as
well as the general spirit in the Col-
| lege Faculty and Student Body.

RESOLVED, that the Board ex-
press its special approval and joy on
being informed that a great number
of young mcn are now studving at
the Colleze with a view to entering
| the ministry of the Christian Church.
[1t is the scnse of the Board that
‘ cvervthing should be done to encour-
age young men of high moral, intel-
lectual, and spiritual qualifications
to consider cntering the full thme
ministry of the Church.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED,
that in Jike manncer young women
of special intellectual and spiritual
gifts be cucouraved to vnter into full
time service in the Church.

RESOLVED, that the Board ex-
| press its joy and appreciation upon
| being informed of the success that
has comc in the extra-curricular ac-

hours

raises

I tivitics of the College in the ficlds |

of music, science, athletics, debate,
oratory, and religion,

RESOLVED, that the Board au-
| thorize President Fastvold to provide
I two full scholarships for vefugce stu-
| dents, and that due consideration be
given to Olaf Magis and Karl Laan-
tee as reccommended by Dr, Howard
Hong, Scnior Ficld Representative,
Scrvices to Refugees, Germany

these two yonng men are both pre-
theological students and are expected
on the campus by Scptember 1, 1949,
It should also be added that the
Student Body has decided to have a
DP from among the Lithuanians
come to the campus. Thus there will
be six people from the three Baltic
States at the College in 1949—Es-
tonia, Latvia, Lithuania).

RESOLVED, that the Board cx-
press its hearty welcome to Mr. and
Mrs. Kuno Nukk and daughtcrs, the
Misses Ivi and Elvi. It is a prayer-
ful desire that their being with us
will redound to the glory of God,
the happiness of this family, the fur-
| therance of the work of Christian
Education and the well-being  of
socicty.

RESOLVED, that the Board ex-
press its sincere condolences upon
being informed of scveral deaths
that have occurred to mernbers of
the fanilies of the Board, Faculty,
and Student Body.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED,
that a special day be sct aside in
the Chapel Excrcises to memorial-
ize and to cormfort in conuection
with these announcements. May God
richly bless the mourning with hope,
stcadfastness, and faith (the Me-
morial Scivice was held in the
Chapel on May 22 at 9:10 a.ni. Dr.

3 Dept. Heads
Break Ground
For New Bldg.

Continucd from Page One)
man of the Department of Religion:
Professor Theodore (). H. Karl,
Chairman of the Departiment of Dra-
| matics and Speech: and Prefessor
G. J. Malmin, Dircctor of the Col-
lege Choir and Chairman of the
Dcpartment of Music. It is planned

that the spade will be preserved in
a nook of the new building. The
| cross=shaped  building will be 200
| fect from front to rear and will be
143 fect wide across the
which wili include the classrooms,
The chapel will hold 1200 people,
and it is expccted that upholstered
auditoriuin chairs numbered individ-
ually will be used on the auditorium
floor. The large lobby and entrance
will face toward the Old Main build-
ing. Above the main entrance will
be a fine arts and lounge with two
offices, one on cither side. On a third
floor, above the mezzanine, there will
be a small devotional chapel which
will hold 75 people. The stage will
be 36x72, and it is stated that it
will be the largest stase of its kind
in this part of the country and one
of the finest in America. The build-
ing will be cquipped with a special
radio and speech  studio. Twenty
piano practice rooms with two organ
rooms, which will be sound-proofed
and cork-floored, and several studios
for teachers, will be a part of the
three-floor instrumental depurtment.
Special rooms will be set aside for
reccording, for music libraries, choral

scction

work, band insturnents, work roonus,
dressing rooms, including a small
stage for onc-act plays independent
of the big stage facing the auditor-
‘ium, and a special pit for the or-
chestra which will be at the front of
the room at the end of the slanting
‘.flt)or. The building will be rmodern
in cvery It will be concrete
reinforced with brick facing match-
ing the brick now used on the ¢am-
pus, and the architecture will match
that nsed in all the new builcdings.
Tt 1s expected that the total cost will
be in the neighborhood of $500,000.
Actnal construction may start about
Aungust 1 depending upon the sue-
cess of the present United Christian
Education Appeal being carried on
throughout the nation. Lea, Pearson,
and Richaeds are the acchitects, and
it is cxpected that Steiro and Han-
son, Tacoma builders, will take care
of the construnction on a fixed fee
basis. When construction has start-
ed, it will take about one year to
camplete the building,

way.

Eastvold dclivered the address).

RESOLVED, that the Board cx-
press its approval of the reports sent
to the various Synods and Districts
by the President of the College.

RESOLVED, that the Board re-
quest the California District of the
Amcrican Lutheran Church to elect
a regular member to the Board of
Trustees to take the place of the
vacancy which left upon the
resignation of the Rev. A R, M.
Kettner. It is believed that this is in
conformity with the regulations thst
have been established in the Amer-
ican Lutheran Church,

RESOLVED, that the Board shall
hold a spccial reception for the Fac-
ulty during the annual meeting of
the Board, the same to be held in
the fall of 1949.

RESOLVED, that the fall meeting
of the Board shall be called jointly
by the Chairman of the Board and
the President of the Colleye as near
as possible to October 14, 1949,

RESOLVED, that thanks be given
to Almighty God for His blessines
showered u pon Pacific Lutheran
College and the work of the insti-

Was

| tution during the present school year.

The mecting closed at 5:00 p.m.
Prayer was offered by Rev. Orval

| Schmidt.



